Capsule Summary
BA-0403

Withers-Morris House
19635 Eagle Mill Road
Parkton, Baltimore County
ca. 1840

Private

Although the property on which the circa 1840 dwelling stands has been owned and occupied by members
of the Merryman family since 1976, the house appears to have been constructed and initially inhabited by
members of the Withers and Morris families. The property, comprising 71.63 acres on which there are a
dwelling and two historic outbuildings, is located to the east of York Road, once the major turnpike
thoroughfare connecting Baltimore to York, Pennsylvania. The vernacular stone masonry dwelling
represents the predominance of this type and material of domestic building construction throughout the first
half of the 19th century in Maryland. The Withers-Morris House does retain sufficient integrity of
location, setting, and material. However, it does not represent a rare building form and was substantially

altered and enlarged in 1978.

The Withers-Morris House is a five-bay wide dwelling constructed circa 1840. The stone house is detailed
with large stone quoins and brick surrounds. The current configuration is comprised of a two-and-a-half-
story stone main block with a two-story addition and a one-story attached garage. The main block faces
south and has a side gable roof clad in diamond-shaped concrete roofing tiles. It is adorned with a wooden
cornice. The dwelling has two interior end brick chimneys with corbeled caps as well as an exterior end
brick chimney in the addition. There is a one-story full-width shed-roofed porch across the facade. The
structure is set into the hill, presenting a three-and-a-half-story rear elevation, which is accented by a two-
story full-width porch and center gable with ornamental wood shingles. The house is located on Eagle Mill
Road and is surrounded by rolling hills with two historic outbuildings and a barn foundation to the south.

A circa 1980 office building is located on the property’s driveway to the north of the main house.
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1. Name of Property (indicate preferred name)
historic Withers-Morris House (preferred)
other Nicholas Merryman House (current), Clover Hill (current)

2. Location

street and number 19635 Eagle Mill Road ___not for publication
city, town Parkton __— Vicinity
county Baltimore County

3. Owner of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name Nicholas B. Merryman of J LLC
street and number 19635 Eagle Mill Road telephone  410.343.0085
city, town Parkton state MD zip code 21120-9043

4. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Baltimore County Courthouse tax map and parcel map 11, parcel 107

city, town Towson liber 14234 folio 713

5. Primary Location of Additional Data

Contributing Resource in National Register District

Contributing Resource in Local Historic District

Determined Eligible for the National Register/Maryland Register
Determined Ineligible for the National Register/Maryland Register
Recorded by HABS/HAER

Historic Structure Report or Research Report at MHT

Other;

6. Classification

Category Ownership Current Function Resource Count

— district — —public — —agriculture ___ landscape Contributing Noncontributing

__X_building(s) _ X private — -—commerce/trade ___ recreation/culture —3 =l buildings

—. _structure _ both — —defense _____religion e —  — sites

— -site _ X domestic ___ social structures

—. Object — _education — transportation objects
__ funerary — _—work in progress il M | Total
______government — —unknown
— _health care —  vacant/not in use Number of Contributing Resources
— —industry — _other: previously listed in the Inventory

4



7. Description Inventory No. BA-0403

Condition
____excellent ___deteriorated
X _good ___ruins
__ fair ___altered

Prepare both a one paragraph summary and a comprehensive description of the resource and its various elements as it
exists today.

The Withers-Morris House is a five-bay wide dwelling constructed circa 1840. The vernacular stone house is
detailed with large stone quoins and brick surrounds. The current configuration is comprised of a two-and-a-
half-story stone main block with a two-story 1978 addition and a one-story attached garage. The main block
faces south and has a side gable roof clad in diamond-shaped concrete roofing tiles. It is adorned with a
wooden cornice. The dwelling has two interior end brick chimneys with corbeled caps as well as an exterior
end brick chimney in the addition. There is a one-story full-width shed-roofed porch across the facade. The
structure is set into the hill, presenting a three-and-a-half-story rear elevation, which is accented by a two-story
full-width porch and center gable with ornamental wood shingles. The house is located on Eagle Mill Road and
is surrounded by rolling hills with two historic outbuildings and a barn foundation to the south. A circa 1980
office building is located along the property’s driveway to the north of the main house.

EXTERIOR DESCRIPTION

The primary facade, which fronts north, is five bays wide with a one-story porch. The porch is set upon a stone
foundation, with chamfered wood posts supporting the shed roof. Square balusters accentuate the porch. A
centrally placed single-leaf door provides access to the two-story stone dwelling. A two-light transom caps this
six-paneled wood entry door. Two elongated 4/4 vinyl windows flank the entry on each side. The openings are
detailed with square-edged wood sills and operable louvered shutters. Below the porch roof, the wall surface is
stuccoed. The second story features five regularly spaced 4/4 vinyl windows with square aluminum-clad sills
and wood lug lintels. The window openings on the second story are accentuated by brick quoins that are largely
obscured by the shutters.

Located to the east of the main block is a two-story addition built in 1978. Recessed from the elevation, this
addition has a side gable roof clad with asphalt shingles. It is clad in wood-grained aluminum siding, and rests
on a concrete block foundation. A one-story, full-width shed overhang clad in asphalt shingles shades the first
story. A tripartite window, comprising a central 8/12 window and 5-light sidelights, marks the first story. An
aluminum surround and louvered shutters frame the opening. The second story has two 6/6 windows with
aluminum surrounds and louvered shutters. An exterior end brick chimney with two chimney pots is located on
the eastern elevation of the addition. A one-story, two-bay garage abuts the addition to the east side. Clad in
wood-grained aluminum siding, the garage has two doublewide roll-up twelve-panel and three-light doors with
narrow wood surrounds. The garage has an asphalt shingled side gable roof.

The banking of the dwelling into a steep hillside has resulted in the exposure of a three-and-a-half story west
elevation. Each of the primary stories has two replacement 1/1 vinyl windows with wood sills covered in
aluminum, wood lug lintels and brick quoins. The attic story has two 2/2 windows with wood lug lintels, wood
surrounds and brick quoins.

The rear, or south elevation, also presents three-and-a-half-stories. It is accentuated by the addition of a central
projecting gable with a molded wood cornice. The tympanum of the gable is clad in fishscale and cove wood
shingles. Like the north elevation, the wall surface of the south elevation is finished with stucco on the first
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story and stone on the second story. A two-story full-width porch marks the ground and first stories. The porch
has a shed roof clad in asphalt shingles, and is supported by chamfered wood posts with a decorative sawn
balustrade. The ground story of the main block is obscured by the enclosure of the porch at this level. It has
been enclosed by five one-light sliding metal doors divided by narrow piers. The first story has a central entry
with a single-leaf entry holding a two-light and two-panel wood door adorned by a two-light transom. It is
symmetrically flanked by four 1/1 vinyl windows with wood sills covered in aluminum and wood lug lintels.
The second story has five similar windows with brick quoins. The gable peak has a 4-light fixed window set
within a semi-circular arched opening. The window is framed by a molded wood surround and sill.

The 1978 two-story addition to the east has a raised concrete block foundation and is clad in aluminum siding.
The first story projects beyond the plane of the wall to meet the depth of the porch on the main block. The
ground level has two 1-light awning windows with square-edged wood sills. A tripartite window, comprising a
central 8/12 window and 5-light sidelights, marks the first story. There is a paired 6-light casement window to
the east. The second story has two evenly spaced 6-light casement windows.

The one-story adjoining garage is located to the east. It is constructed of concrete blocks with aluminum siding
in the gable end. There are two one-light awning windows with square-edged wood sills and a single-leaf
opening holding a sash-and-paneled wood door.

The east of the main block has aluminum cladding in the gable end. The addition has a 6/6 window with an
aluminum surround and louvered attic story triangular vents flanking the chimney.

INTERIOR DESCRIPTION

The first story of the center-passage/single-pile plan main block features two parlors flanking a central
stair/entry hall. Because of subsequent interior alterations, only one of the parlors retains its original
configuration. The other parlor has been subdivided into a study, hall, closet, and powder room. The center-
passage extends the depth of the house, connecting the front and rear porches. The stair retains its original
configuration and is located in the main hall. The straight-flight stair has an open stringer with turned balusters
and a turned newel post with a ball finial. The hall is detailed with six-inch baseboards topped by ogee molding
caps. The hardwood floors have been carpeted.

The intact parlor is located to the west of the main stair. This parlor retains much of its original detailing,
including wood square-edged baseboards, deep-set wood window casings with molded ogee sills, and molded
door casings. The carved wood mantel has reeded pilasters, molded lintel, and applied turned wood brackets.
The walls and ceiling consist of painted plaster, while the floors were carpeted over the original wood
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floorboards. There is one wood four-paneled door in the parlor with a metal lock box and wood-grained
porcelain knobs.

The converted study is located in the southeast portion of the main block. A new wall was added to divide the
space, carpeting was placed over the three to four inch wide floorboards, and a window on the west wall was
infilled when the addition was added and the room became a study with built-in shelving. Despite the
alteration, many of the original details remain intact, including the square-edged wood baseboards, the plaster
walls and ceiling, the inset wood ogee molded window casings, and wood molded door casings. There is a
wood six-paneled door with modern replacement hardware.

The northeast portion of the main block has been divided into a secondary hall, which leads to the addition, a
closet, and a powder room. The inside of the fagcade wall retains its original inset ogee molded window casings
while the subdivision walls have two-inch flush molded baseboards with ogee caps. The oak floors consist of
twelve to thirteen inch boards, which were original location in the corncrib.

The second floor houses bedrooms in the original portion of the dwelling and in the addition. The original main
block includes inset molded window sills, square-edged baseboards, and molded door surrounds. The addition
has all modern detailing.

A finished attic, divided into two rooms with plaster walls and ceilings, encompasses the entire portion of the
main block. The molded wood door surrounds are intact, as is some of the original 1870s style hardware and
hinges. The floors are constructed with three-inch wood boards. A stovepipe is also present.

The late 1970s addition contains a living room and an eat-in kitchen. Modern two-inch wood baseboards and
thin molded window and door casings are present. A geometrically patterned wood mantel was reused from
another historic house. Wall to wall carpeting, dry wall ceilings and walls are also modern materials used in the
construction of the addition. A modern kitchen is also present.

OUTBUILDINGS

The two-story, one-bay wide gable-fronted corncrib is constructed on a stone foundation and is clad in board
and batten on the gable end and weatherboard siding on the sides. The roof is sheathed in wood shingles and
appears to be rebuilt. It is finished with a wooden cornice and overhanging eaves. Circular saw marks and
some hand-hewn beams exist. The floorboards were removed and reused in a hall in the main dwelling. Drive-
through openings are present on the gable ends. A small fixed four-light window with a wood surround also
exists in the gable end.

The stone foundations of a bank barn and a pigpen are also located on the premises.
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The springhouse, constructed circa 1840, is has a coursed rubble stone structural system atop a coursed rubble
stone foundation. The corners of the structure are anchored by large stone quoins. The front gable roof of the
structure exhibits beams and rafters that are hand-hewn on two sides and other rafters are unhewn. A square
ventilator with a pyramidal roof clad in wood shingles rises from the back of the roof. The one-and-a-half
story, one-bay wide springhouse has a central entry with a wood lintel and a flush vertical board single-leaf
door. The interior retains much of its original material. The troughs into which water was channeled and
containers of milk or other perishables were placed to cool by running water are extant. Because springhouses
were constructed at or very close to the water source, they were often built into the side or base of a hill where a
spring emerged from the ground, as evidenced by the placement of this springhouse.



8. Sig nificance Inventory No. BA-0403

Period Areas of Significance Check and justify below
__ 1600-1699 __ agriculture __ economics __ health/medicine __ performing arts
__1700-1799 __ archeology __ education __ industry __ philosophy
X 1800-1899 X architecture __ engineering __invention __ politics/government
X 1900-1999 __art __ entertainment/ __landscape architecture __ religion
__ 2000- ___ commerce recreation _ law __ science
___ communications __ ethnic heritage __literature __ social history
__ community planning  __ exploration/ __ maritime history __ transportation
__ conservation settlement __ military __ other:
Specific dates circa 1840 Architect/Builder Unknown

Construction dates  circa 1840, 1978

Evaluation for:

__ __National Register o Maryland Register EEJ not evaluated

Prepare a one-paragraph summary statement of significance addressing applicable criteria, followed by a narrative discussion of the
history of the resource and its context. (For compliance projects, complete evaluation on a DOE Form —~ see manual.)

Although the property on which the circa 1840 dwelling stands has been owned and occupied by members of
the Merryman family since 1976, the house appears to have been constructed and initially inhabited by
members of the Withers and Morris families. The property, comprising 71.63 acres on which there are a
dwelling and two historic outbuildings, is located to the east of York Road, once the major turnpike
thoroughfare connecting Baltimore to York, Pennsylvania. The vernacular stone masonry dwelling represents
the predominance of this type and material of domestic building construction throughout the first half of the 19"
century in Maryland.

HISTORY

Although the exact date of construction for Nicholas Merryman House has not been determined, current tax
records, historic maps, and architectural evidence support a circa 1840 date. The land on which the house was
constructed in the mid-19" century was owned by Charlotte Withers as early as 1811, when she acquired the
land from James Calder. The property is located just north of the Parkton, a small community along York
Road. The dwelling appears on the 1850 map, and is labeled with the name L. Morris, who resided in and then
later owned the house.

The materials, form, and modest ornament that characterize the dwelling are very representative of early to mid-
19" century architecture throughout Baltimore County. The rubble stone walls and the five-bay wide, single-
pile form are common to many domestic buildings in and around the area of Parkton. The most ornamental
aspects of the dwelling are the dressed quoins that surround the window and door openings and the moderate to
steep pitch of the side gable roof. In addition, the house reflects a certain amount of Gothic Revival style
influences in the steeply pitched central gable on the back of the dwelling. The gothic revival style was made
popular in the mid-19" century by Andrew Jackson Downing after he published pattern books that depicted
Gothic Revival style dwellings in picturesque locations throughout the countryside. The accompanying
springhouse, which dates to the period of the dwelling’s initial construction, is also representative of through
materials and form of springhouses throughout Baltimore County. Water, which continuously flowed through
the springhouse, was usually channeled through troughs in the floor or sometimes through raised troughs. It
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exited through an opening at the base of the building. Containers of milk or other perishables were placed in
the trough and cooled by the running water. The troughs of the springhouse at the Withers-Morris House are
intact.

Parkton, the community near which the Withers-Morris House is located, is a mid-19"-century town located
twenty-nine miles north of Baltimore City. Situated along the Northern Central Railroad, Parkton was home to
50 inhabitants in 1881 and at that time, was the center of a rich agricultural and trading region. The close
proximity of Parkton to York Road and the railroad rendered the area as a center of trade.'

The property on which the house is situated on Eagle Mill Road, is located to the east of York Road. It is
located on the western edge of the Sixth district, on the boundary with the Seventh election district, which was
one of the largest and most populated regions of the county in the latter part of the 19" century. Pennsylvania
bounds both districts to the north. In 1870, district six had an area of 30.05 square miles and a population of
2235, but it had grown to 2326 by 1881. The area historically consisted of rugged hills and valleys, traversed
by major transportation corridors, such as the railroad and well maintained country roads’. Arable fields,
located in the valleys, for plantings of wheat, corn, oats and fruits support the districts. It was known for its
dairy production and the breeding of cattle. In addition the waterpower of the Gunpowder Falls and its
tributaries supported numerous mills, including the largest paper mills in the state.

Prior to the organization of turnpikes in Baltimore County, many of the county’s roads were considered unfit for
use. Earlier efforts to incorporate turnpike companies originated from the county government, yet, by the turn
of the 19" century, efforts to create better roads emanated from the state government’s efforts to better serve the
growing rural population. This action resulted in the laying of a road from Baltimore, Maryland to York,
Pennsylvania that would replace the winding, indirect Old York Road.” The privately organized York Turnpike
Company was incorporated in 1805. Work on the new road ceased in 1810, when the thirty-five miles of road
from Baltimore to the Pennsylvania Line was completed. This route soon became one of the primary north-
south corridors in Baltimore County. Taverns in Maryland Line, Wiseburg, Philopolis, and Timonium served
travelers along the route.* In 1838, the Baltimore and Susquehanna Railroad Company began construction of a
line that would run northward from Baltimore nearly parallel to the York Turnpike.

' J. Thomas Scharf, History of Baltimore City and County From the Earliest Period to the Present Day: Including Biographical Sketches of Their
Representative Men (Philadelphia, PA: Louis H. Everts, 1881), p. 872.

? J. Thomas Scharf, History of Baltimore City and County From the Earliest Period to the Present Day: Including Biographical Sketches of Their
Representative Men (Philadelphia, PA: Louis H. Everts, 1881), p. 869.

* Sherry H. Olson, Baltimore: The Building of an American City (Baltimore, MD: The Johns Hopkins University Press, 1997), p. 172; see also S. B.
Clemens and C. E. Clemens, From Marble Hill to Maryland Line: An Informal History of Northern Baltimore County (np: C. E. and S. B. Clemens,
1976), p. 10.

*William Hollifield, Difficulties Made Easy: History of the Turnpikes of Baltimore City and County (Cockeysville, MD: The Baltimore County
Historical Society, 1978), p. 51; see also Atlas of Baltimore County, Marvland (Philadelphia, PA: G. M. Hopkins, 1877), pp. 44-49.
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A parcel of land that appears to have included the dwelling was sold by Trustees for Charlotte Withers to
Pleasant Hunter in 1867. In 1872, Hunter then sold the property to Francis A. Chilcoat, who appears to have
rented the space to a Mrs. Taylor in the mid- to late 1870s, for the 1877 atlas of the county indicates that Taylor
resides in the house. Deed research does reveal that the Morris family definitively held ownership and
transferred the title to the Wilson family in 1892. The Wilson family also acquired additional property here in
1893 from Daniel Cameron. They then relinquished ownership in 1976 when the house was sold to Nicholas
and Nell W. Merryman.

Chain of Title:
Part 1:
1811: James Calder to Charlotte Withers
Land Records of Baltimore County
Information from Liber 54 Folio 388
October 30, 1860: Charlotte Withers, widow, Susannah Withers, Edwin D. Withers and Charlotte A. Withers to Adam Denmead
Land Records of Baltimore County
Liber GHC 30 Folio 506
April 23, 1866: Talbott Denmead, successor of Adam Denmead and trustee for Charlotte Withers, Susan Withers, Edwin D.
Withers, and Michael P. C. Withers to Daniel W. Cameron
Land Records of Baltimore County
Liber 49 Folio 33
Part 2:
1811: James Calder to Charlotte Withers
Land Records of Baltimore County
Information from Liber 49 Folio 33
October 7, 1893: Daniel W. Cameron to Comelius Wilson
Land Records of Baltimore County
Liber 241 Folio 287
October 7, 1893: Daniel W. Cameron to Cornelius Wilson
Land Records of Baltimore County
Liber 241 Folio 286
Part 3:
1811: James Calder to Charlotte Withers

Land Records of Baltimore County
Information from Liber 54 Folio 388

June 27, 1867: Talbott Denmead, trustee for Charlotte A. Withers, Susan Withers, Edwin D. Withers, and Michael P.C.
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March 26, 1872:

October 10, 1888:

October 18, 1888:

October 18, 1888:

March 26, 1892:

All Parts:

December 1929:

October 23, 1953:

July 9, 1976:

April 22, 1988:

August 23, 1999:

Withers, to Pleasant Hun ter
Land Records of Baltimore County
Liber 54 Folio 388

Pleasant Hunter to Francis A. Chilcoat
Land Records of Baltimore County
Liber GHC 75 Folio 94

William S. Keech, guardian of Mary R. Price, and Thomas J. Hunter, trustee to William S. Keech
Land Records of Baltimore County
Liber 171 Folio 476

William S. Keech and Rose Keech, wife, to Lemuel Morris
Land Records of Baltimore County
Liber 171 Folio 534

William S. Keech and Rose Keech, wife, mortgaged to Lemuel Morris Laura Belle Morris
Mortgage Records of Baltimore County
Liber 140 Folio 261

Nicholas S. Morris, Mary S. Morris, wife, Lucinda P. Stifler and William F. Stifler, husband, Albert O. Morris
and Kate Morris, wife, Elizabeth A. Taylor and George W. Taylor, husband, Edward K. Morris and Catherine
Morris, wife, All heirs of Lemuel Morris to Cornelius Wilson

Land Records of Baltimore County

Liber LMB 191 Folio 567

Cornelius Wilson last will and testament to George Wilson, deceased, Grace Annie Wilson, Nellie Wilson, and
John Wilson

Will Records of Baltimore County

Liber WJP 26 Folio 157

Grace Annie Wilson and Nellie Wilson to John W. Wilson
Land Records of Baltimore County
Liber GLB 2378 Folio 90

Nellie Wilson, John W. Wilson, and Bessie B. Wilson, wife, to Nicholas B. Merryman and Nell W. Merryman,
wife,

Land Records of Baltimore County

Liber RRG 4326 Folio 517

Nicholas B. Merryman of J. and Nell Williams Merryman, wife, to Nell Williams Merryman
Land Records of Baltimore County
Liber SM 7850 Folio 95

Eleanor M. Hardy, personal representative of the estate of Nell Williams Merryman
Land Records of Baltimore County
Liber 13981 Folio 578
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October 19, 1999: Nicholas B. Merryman of J. to Nicholas B. Merryman of J. LLC
Land Records of Baltimore County
Liber 14234 Folio 713
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10. Geographical Data

Acreage of surveyed property 71.63 Acres
Acreage of historical setting Unknown
Quadrangle name New Freedom Quadrangle scale: 1:24,000

Verbal boundary description and justification

Since circa 1841, the Withers-Morris House has been associated with the 71.63 acres known as parcel 107 of
grid 18, map 11 in the Baltimore County Tax Assessor’s Office.

11. Form Prepared by

name/titie L. V. Trieschmann, J. J. Bunting, and A. L. McDonald, Architectural Historians
organization EHT Traceries, Inc. date 2 October 2000
street & number 1121 5th Street NW telephone  202.393.1199
city or town Washington state DC

The Maryland Inventory of Historic Properties was officially created by an Act of the Maryland Legislature
to be found in the Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,
1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and record purposes only
and do not constitute any infringement of individual property rights.

return to: Maryland Historical Trust
DHCD/DHCP
100 Community Place
Crownsville, MD 21032-2023
410-514-7600
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NICHOLAS MERRYMAN HOUSE - Before 1850 - Located 0.1
mile SE of Eagle Mill Road, entrance 0.2 mile NE of
Walker Road. Probably the L. Lewis House of 1850 map.
Shown as "Mrs. Taylor" property on 1877 atlas.
Three-section house includes main block of stone,

mid-section covered with aluminum siding, and a
garage. Main block is two stories, five bays wide,
with full-width front porch; second-story windows are
small with 2-on-2 lights. Gable roofing on all

segments; rubber roofing material in hexagonal pattern
on main block. House set in a hollow.
Owner: Nicholas B. Merryman.



